United Nations Nations Unies

UNRESTRICTED
AND ECONOMIQU‘E 28 June 1948

ENGLISH

SOCIAL COUNCIL ET SOCIAL  oricmuni: FRENCH

COMMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS
Third Sesslon
SUMM{.RY RECORD OF THE SEVENTY-FIRST MEETING
Hcld at Loke Success, New York,

on Mondcy, 14 June 1948, at 10.30 z.nm.

Chairmon: Mrs, Fronklin D, ROCSEVELT Unitod States of /merica

Ropportour: Mr, Charles MALIK Lebonon
Members: Mr. HOOD Auagtralic
Mr, STEY,.ERT Belgium
Mr. STEP..NENKO Byelorussicn Soviet Sociclist
Republic
Mr. LARRAIN Chile
Mr. CHLNG China
Mr, LOUTFI Egypt
Mr, CASSIN Fronce
Mrs. MEHTA Indic
Mr. QUIJANO Panome.
Mr., INGLES Pnilippines
Mr. KIEKOVKIN Ukrceinicn Soviet Sociaclist Roepublic
Mr. BLVLOV Union of Soviet Socialist Republica
Mr. WILSON United Kingdom
Mr. FONBAINA Croguny
Mr. VILFAN Yugoslavia
Also Present:
Mra. LEDON Commission on the Stoatus of Women

Representatives of speclaliased cgenciles:

Mr. METALL International Labour Organization
(I10)

Mr, LEBAR Undted Notions Educational, Scienti-
fic and Cultural Organization
( UNESCO)

Obgexrver from inter-governmental organization:

Mr, STONE Preparatery Commisaion of the Inter-
notionnl Refugee Organizetion(IRC)

Any corrections of this record should be submitted in writing, in either
of the working langueges (English or French), and within twenty-four hours, to
Mr, E, Delaveney, Director, Officizl Records Division, Rocm CC-119, Lcoke
Success, Correctiens should be accompanied by or incorporated in a letter, ou
headed notepoper, beering the appropriate symbol number and enclcsed in an
envelope morked "Urgent”. Carrections can be dealt with more speedily by the
services concerncd if delegatioms will be good enough elso to incorporate them
in a mimeographed copy of the record.,



E/CN.4/SR.T1
Poge 2

Consultonts from hcn;gQVernmentq;?organizaticns:

Miss SENDER
Mr. VANISTENDAEL

Mr. RUBINCW

Mrs . IRENNAN

Mr, NOLIE

Mr. PRENTICE

Mrs. Van den BERG
Miss SCHAEFER

Miss ROBB

Secretorict:

Mr. HUMPHREY
Mr, LAWSON

Americen Federction of Lobor (AFL)

Internationcl Federction of Christica
Trode Unions (IFCTU)

World Federaticn of United Nations
Associations

Catholic Internationcl Union for
Social Service

Commission of the Churches on
Internctional Affairs

Internationcl Alliance of Women

Internmational Union of Catholic
VWomen's Leagues

Liaison Cormittee of Women's
International Orgonizaticns

Director, Human Rights Division
Secretcry of the Commission

CONTINUATION OF THE DISCUSSION ON THE IRAFT INTERNATIONAL IECLARATION

ON HUMAN RIGHTS (document E/CN.4/95)

Articles 25 end 26

The CHATRMAN read the text proposed by the Internmational Lobour

Orgenizcotion for paragraph 1 of the article intended to replace articles

25 cnd 26:

"Every one hzs the right to o standord of living, and to

social services adequote for the health and well-belng of. him-~

self and his fomily (and to esitinl security) including protec-

tion in the event of unemployment, sickness, disability, eld

oge or other lack of ilivelihood in circumstances beyond his

control,"”

A separate vote had to be taken on the words which appecred in brockets.

The representative of the USSR Pad.also csked that the followlng phrase should

be inecludcd in the ILO text: “social insurcnee, housing and medical core,”

Specking cs United States représentative, the Chofrman thqught that the

text proposed by the representative of ILO was both complete and cdequate.

She would prefer the texrm "secial insurcnce” not to be used, as its mecning

veried in different countries. She would cgree, however, to the inclusion

somevwhere in the text, either before or cfter the expression “sevial security”,

/of the words



B/CN.L/SR.T1
Page 3

of the words "fcod, clothing, housing and mediccel care."

Owing to the cbsence of some representatives, the Commissicn decided to

consider the covering article (document E/GN.h/lEO) proposed by Mr. Cossin

(Frence) for inclusion in the Decleration before the series of articles cn
socizl and economlce rights,

Covering articles (document E/CN.4/120)

The CHAIRMAN read the article proposed by Mr. Cassin (France).

Mr, LOUTFI (Egypt) wished the French text zmended so as %o say thot
the fulfilment of rights should be gucronteed "in eccordance with economic
end soclel possibilities,..." It was to be understood, moreover, that that
question was within the competence not only of the State, but of any organi-

zation vhich might be entrusted with those functions,

The CHATRMAN, specking as the United States representative, proposed
the following amendment: ",,.be made possible in every State separately or in
collrboration with other States, in accordance with the soclal and esconomic

system end political orgenization.”

Mr. CASSIN (France) welcomed the cemments to which his proposal hed
given rise. The two suggestions which hod just been made, though similar,
vere not, however, identiczl. While the Egypticr rerresentotive wished to
obtzin the meximum possible rights compatible with the potentialities of the
social, economic and political system of ezch country, the text proposed by
the United States representctive tended rather to insist on the need for such
messures to be fit in with the prevailing system. It might be possible to
merge these two ideas into o single ocmendment.

He would like to hear the Australion representative's views on his

proposal,

Mr, WILSON (United Kingdom) thought that the text proposed by

Mr, Cassin (France) rcised o serious difficulty. In the articles adopted

/up till then



E/CN.4/SR.T1
Page b

up till then the Commission had not defined how the other rights were to be
epplied. - To introduce into a covering article on socizl and economic rights
the question of *he method of applying those rights gave them priority. The
Declerstion on Humen Rights would be publicized throughout the entire world,
end would serve as & basis of education. It would be unfortunate were such

en important text to give prierity £o those rights, thus placing them before
81l others, The text agreed upon by the Drafting Sub-Committee for insertion
at the end of the Declaration covered allvrights enumerated in the Declaraticn,
and appeared to be emply sufficient. ObJjections had been raised agcinst other

articles beccuse they contained, in eddition to a statement of rights, provi-

sions for epplying such rights.

the Declaration., In a question of such importance the Commission should pro-

ceed circumspectly, end should avoid giving the impression that the fulfilment
of socizl and economic rights wes more lmportant than that of the other human

rights.

It was his delegution's view that no distinction should be made between
the rights and freedoms enumerated in the Decleration. The French text, by
using the expression "vhose fulfilment should be mede possible etc." implied
that there was less need to implementvthe other rights. He would vote against

the text submitted by the French delegation.

The CHATRMAN suggested that the further discussion of the covering
article should be postponed until the aftermoon meeting, and that the Commis-
sion should resume the consideration of the article which was intended to
replace articles 25 and 26,

Articles 25 and 26 (Continued)

The CHAIRMAN read the wording submitted by the representative of

the USSR for the new article:

"1) Everyone has the right to social security and to & standard of

living sufficient for the maintenance of his own welfare and nealth as



E/CN.4/SR,T1
Pege 5

well as those of his family, and in pearticular the right to material
gecurity in cese of unemployment, sickness, disability, old age or the
loss of means of existence for reasons beyond his control, ond in case
of employment, the right to social insurance a2t the expense of the State
or of employers, in accordance with the legislation of each countfy.

"2) Everyone has the right to medical care and physician's help
in case of sickness.

53)‘ Everyone has the right to housing worthy of the dignity of
the humen being.

"The State and community should take all necessary meesures,
including legislcotlve ones, to insure for every person real possibilities
of enjoying all these rights."”

She then read again the text proposed by the ILO for peragraph 1 of the

nev article, and the USSR amendment thereto.

Mr, CASSIN (France) considered that the draft proposed by the repre-
sentative of the ILO, based &8 1t was on the Drafting Sub-Committee’s text,
wes highly satisfactory. The words "to a standard of living and to social
services esdequate for the health and well-being' covered the points enumerated
in the USSR draft. However he had no objection to the worde "housing and
medical cere” being added.

As to the term "sociel insuracnce" he himself had submitted a text in
which that expression had been used, and whiéh héd been rejected by ths
Commission as too narrow, The words "socisl security” used in the ILO text
vere broader., It woqld be a mistzke to re-introduce a term already considered
inedequate. He wes in favour of the text proposed by the representotive of

the ILO.

Mr, WILSCON (United Kingdem) was unable to accept the USSR draft
for articles 25 and 26. 1In his country, social insurance was the Joiat

responsibility of the State, employer and the worker. It was impossible to

dadrww:


http://Joi-.it

edopt any text which would compel a. country 1o alter completely a system of
soclal insurance which was entirely satisfactory.

Moreover, he agreed with Mr. Cassin that the term "social insurance" had
a much narrower meaning than had "socizl security”.

The ILO text covered all. the points contained ir the USSR draft. Medical
care wes covered twice; once by the words "standard of living" and again by
"hezlth end well-being"”. Housing ~-- as well as food and clothing -- was
covered by "well-being of himself ecnd his family”. He was prepared to accept
the JLO text 1f the words in bracksts were left out. The meaning of the temm
"social security"” differed in the various countries., If it had only a vague
meaning it could be accepted, but in practice it was not universally applied,

28 the ILO hed pointed out to the Commission.

The CHAIRMAN, speaking as United States representative, supported
the ILO text for the seme reascns as those of Mr. Wilson (United Kingdom).
The text wes sufficiently complete, For the szke of unanimity she was pre-

pered to eccépt the addition of the words "housing and medicel care".

Mr. HOOD (Anstrelie) also thought thot all the principles enounced
in the text of the representative of the>USSR were included, in general terms,
in the dreft submitted by the ILO,

He thought the words "social security" shoula be retained in the ILO
toxt. The terr was very useful and, if it were left out, the clearness of
the rest of the text would suffer, and it would be left uncertain vhere the
protection would come frcem in the cases listed at the end of the paragraph.
The article should contain the concept of social secur;ty which should, in

every State, be the basis of the "protection” mentioned in the text.

Mr, PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) replying to the
ccmments rut forward, did not accept the argument that the right to medical
care was inferred in the ILO draft. It was true that the text spoke of
stondards of living and of scciel services adequate for health, but there was

/no provision



no provision for cases where health was»lost or threatened. The principle
of the right to medical care which waé admittéd in &ll countries, could not
be opposed. The USSR text went further than merely cdmitting o princilpls;
it stipulated that the right to such care would be guaranteed by legislative
measures. Such ap important right should be stated categorically and its
application should be guaranteed.

The United States of America might, as its representative had told the
Commission, have a million hospital beds, but other countries were less
edvanced in that field and the article should call on trhem to make an effort,
The USSR had spent twenty-thousand million rubles on medical care in 1948,
Cne million hospitel beds were available to the population in free hospitals
in the USSR, in addition to the fouwr hundred and fifty thousand beds in the
clinics and sanatoris,

In regard to parcgraph 3 of his draft, he did not agree with some repre-
gentatives, that the IILO text was satisfactory. It was not enough to talk
about standards of living and well-being. The workers' right to adequote
housing sgliculd be stated in concrete terms. There was no equality of housing
in meny countries. Now that industrislization was going forward steadily it
wes intolereble that people should be housed in a way which was incompatible
with humen dignity. All States shovld take the measwres called for in the
Declaration., He could see nothing to object to in paragraph 3.

He reminded the Unlted States representative of the difficulties with
vhich the USSR had been faced in the matter of housing after the Germen
occupation, One. thousand seven hundred towns, soventy thousand villages and
over six million houses had been destroyed, leaving twenty-five million persont
homeless. As the United States representative had rightly remerked, the USSR
had been faced with difficulties. The figures he had quoted gave an ldea of
the slze of the task which hed hed to be tackled and which still hed to be
corried through. Since the end of the wer five million persons hed been
re-housed as a result of the recomstruction of eight hundred end thirty-nine
thousand houses in rural districts and nine million square metres of dwellinge-

in the towns.
- The CHATRMAN



E/CN.4/SR.71
Pree 8

The CHATRMAN, syeaking cs United States representative, pointed
out to the USSR representative that she thought that the main obJjection to
paragrdph‘3 of his draft arose from the difficulty of precisely defining
the expression "worthy of the dignity of the human being". Evefy country
had its own concéption of what constituted hoﬁsing worthy of the digmity

of the humen being.

Mr. PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Socizlist Republics) replied that he
had in mind a memorandum from the President of the United States to Congress,
vhich dealt with the question of millions of young people forced to live in
slums. It was clearly impossible to use the same form of words for everyone.
But his text was gufficiently clear: human beings should not live like
enimals; they should not be forced to live in shacks, hovels or ceves. They
shculd be provided with edequate housing which would not endanger their health
or that .f their families, He would accept any amendment which would state
that idea 1n even stronger terms. It was zlso important that the words
"every person’ in the last paragreph should be emphasized so that the article
should appeal to the feeling of social Justice, He did not object to the
emendment of the words "worthy of the dignity of the humen being"% but he
insisted on the retention of the principle that every person had & ri;ht»to
cdequate housing,gﬂd that that obJective could only be attained with the help
of the State and soclety.

He ucsked that whon the vote was taken, his text should be voted on
paragcraph by paragraph in the following order: Paragroph 2, pqragraph 3,

paragraph 1 and the last paregraph.



E/CN.4/SR.T1
Page 9

Mrs. MEATA (Indie) preferred the shorter text proposed by the
roprogontative of the International Laebour Organization. The refersuce
to a "etandard of living adequate for health and well-being" adequately
covered the points raised by the USSR amendment.

Mrs. Mehta did not, however, think that the reference to "social
security” should be deleted altogether, end suggested by way of com-
promise that the phrase "and to such measures of social security a-
would includo protection in the event of..." should be inserted after

the word "family".

Mr. METALL (Internaticnal Labour Organization) thought that

the USSR amendment, by speaking of "the right to social security at the
expense of the State or of the employer" raised insurmounteble Aiffi-
culties, as methods of social 1psurance varied from country to country
and social insurance could be financed in at least seven distinct ways,
by the State, the employer, the employee or by part contributions by
two or all three of the above.

Mr. Metall supported the Chinese representative's'suggesticn that
the words "including housing and medical care, food and clothing" should
be inserted after the words "social services" in the ILO text, He pointed
out, however, that if that amendment were adopted, the phrase "and to
social security" would nc longer be apposite as the principal elements of
social security would have been listed already. He preferred the wording
“end to social insurance including prctection in the event of unemployment
etc,", which, he thought, should satisfy both the United Kingdom apd USSR
representatives, The point at issue was to define the means by which it
was proposed to put social security into effect, and the roference to

gocial insurance seemed to him appropriate in that coonexion,

The CHAIRMAN, spesking as representative o the United States

of imerica, thought that it would be very difficult to accept such an

TavimmAman



E/CN.L/SR.T1
Page 10

emendment, since the term "social insurttice" inevitably implied pay-
ments made in advance. That conception excluded the possibility of
social securlty in its wider sense, comprising donations or contribu-

tious from other sources made at the actual moment of need.

Mr. MET/LL (International Labour Orgenization) explained
that the reference to social services in the filxet pert of his pro-
posal made sufficiont provision for countries such as the United States,
which preferred the system outlined by the Chairman for the protectlon

of the health and well-bolng of its citizenms.

Mr, PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) pointed out
thaet the concept of soclal insurance which his delegation defended was
fundamentally different from that uphold by the others. In the eyes
of the USSR delegaticn, a system of soclel insurance based only on
contributions deducted from the emwployee's wages did not constitute
real social insurance but merely a system of compulsory savings im-
posed on the employee. Contributions to social insurance should, in
his opinion, be made elther by the State or by the employer.

The USSR delegation was aware of thoe fact that methods of soclal
Insurance werc not identical everywhere and had included the phrase
"in accordanco with the legislation of each country" in its text with
that fact io mind. Moreover, the first part of the USSR text, in
roferring to soclal security, provided for the proitection of everyone,
including those who were not employeas. The USSR amendment thus covered
all the poipnts which could be c:nsiderod necessary.

In conclusion, Mr, Pavlov ropeated that a system under which the
worker paid the ontire contribution towards his insurance was antili-
domocratic and did not comstitute roal social insurance. He suggeseted
that other countries, and especially the United Kingdom, should ponder

that quostion,
/Mr. CLSSIN



E/CN.L4/SR,71
Pago 11

Mr. CASSIN (Frence) thought that the ILO text es amended by
the Chinese dslegation war adequate.

He stated that France was & country with ome of the most highly
developed systems of soclal insurance. He would, however,'be unable
to vote ipn favour of the USSR amendment for two reascms, firstly, on
account of the difficultles commected with the existence of different
systems in various countries, and secondly because France, like many
other countries, had millions of working citizens who were neither
employers nor employees‘but independent workers., It was, therefore,
impossible to establish a uniform system of sociel insurence or to

issue rigid directives to individusl States,

Mr. WILSON (United Kingdom) remarked thet whatever system

seemed the most desirable, & Declaration on Humen Rights could not
call on States to change the systems which were in force in their
countries, The discussion on sociel security and insurance had con-
vinced him that it was inadvisable to include those concepts in the
Declaration in view of the difficulties of interpretation to which they
were bound to give rise.

hs a compromise, Mr., Wilson proposed to replace the words "including
protection” in the ILO text by "and to social security".

He added that he did not think that thore was any need for the

words "food and clothing" proposed in the Chinese emendment.

Mr. METALL (Intornational Labour Organization) agreed to

the chaenges proposed by Mr, Wilson.

In compliance with the wish of the USSR representative, the
CEAIRMAN put to the vote paragraph 2 of the USSR proposal, reeding as
follows:

"Everyone has the right to medical care and physicien's

help in cese of sickmess".
/Paregraph 2



E/CN.4/SR.71
Page 12

Paragraph 2 of the USSR apepdment wos rejocted by 7 votes to
L with 2 abstentions.

The CEAIRMAN put to the vote paragraph 3 of the USSR amend-

ment.

Paragraph 3 of the USSR amendment wes rejoected by 6 votes to
4, with 3 abstentiops,

Mr. FONTAINA (Uruguay) thought that the paragraph was simply

an injunctimto States to supply free housing.

Mr, PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republice) replied
that the context and especially tho lest paragraph of his amendment
clearly showed that it had no such meaning. There were naturally other
possibilities varying ffom country to country, such as rent reductions,

assistance given by organizations and so on.

Mr. CHANG (China) wished to point out before & vote was taken
on the first part of peragraph 1 that its proviesions were fundamentally
the same &8 those containmed in the ILO text. To vote against the USSR
text would, therefore, 8ignify disagreement with its wording only, but

not with the principles on which it was based.

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the first part of paragraph 1l

of the USSR ameudment down to the word "control".

The first part of parasgreph 1 was rejected by 9 votes to 4, with
1 abstention,

Mr. PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republice) regretted
that while it haed beep admitted that his toxt wes fundamentally 1denti;
cal with that submitted by the ILO, the former should have been rejected
simply because it emenated from the USSR delegation. He drew the Com-
mission's attention to the fact that the second part of parasgreph 1

/contained



E/CN.4/3R.T1
Pege 13

contuined a reference to social insurance which did not appear in the
ILO toxt and which was in denger of being omitted altogether if his

emondment were rejected.

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the second part of paragraph 1

of the UGSR emondment.

The socond part of the USSR apendpont yas rejected bv 9 votes to
L, with 1 ebstention,

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the last paragraph of the USSR

text.

The las ra was r t with 4 sbstentions
The Commiesion then proceeded to conaidor tho questiow of the vote.
to be taken on the text subtmitted by the Intermationmel Labour Orgeniza-

tion as amended by the Chinese and United Kingdom representatives.

Mr. WILSON (United Kingdom) was in favour of a separate vote

as to whether speciel reference should be made to "foed and clothing”.

Mr, CBANG (China) 41d not see what possible objection there
could be to that phrese when millions of people throughout the world were

deprived of food and clothing.‘

Mr. PAVLOV (Upion of Soviet Socialist Republics) was surprised
that the representative of China should have voted against the last pare-
greph of the USSR amendment which made provision for the means to emsure

those very rights which he wished to safeguard.

Mr. CHANG (China) stated that the queetion reised in that para-
graph would form the subject eithor of a soparate "umbrella" clause or
of a paragraph to be inserted in the Preamble, He added that his roasons

for voting agaim t the USSR toxt were comnected with its wording.



E/CN.4/SR.71
Page 14

Mr. FONTAIN. (Uruguay) observed that the practicel application
of the provisions of the Declaration would depend on fhe domestic leglslation
of each State, provided of course that such legislation corresponded to
the principles and purposes of the United Natioms.
He did not think that the words "food and clothing" were nocccssary,
since the phrese "stapdard of living adequate for health and well-being"

vag sufficiontly clear.

Mr. CH\NG (China) did not agreoe that the term "standeard of

living" was sufficiontly precise. The question involved concermed not

only the quantity but also the quality of food. The Chinese representa-
tive 414 not underetand the wieh to avoid reference to the two principal

factors of an adequate standard of living.

The CH/.IRMAN suggested that the words "including food end
lodging, housing and medical care" should be insorted after the words

"standard of living”.
Mr. CH.NG (China) agreed to that proposal,

The CHAIFMAN called for & vote on the question as to whethor

the words "food and cloting' should be included in the text..

It was degidod to $ncludo thoeo words by 1l votes to 3,

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the Chinesco amendment as a whole.

The_Chineso amendment was_adopted by 12 votes to none with 2 shstentions.

Tho CHAIRMAN put to the vote the United Kingdom amendment.

The amondment wes adopted by 6 votes to 2 with 5 ebstentioms.

A vote was then taken on the ILO text thus amended.

/The ILO text .



E/CN.4/SR.71
Page 15

with 6 absteptions.
The Commission progsseded to vote on the second paregraph of erticle 26

dealing with special protection for mothers apd children.

In reply to 2 question by Mr. Fontaina (Uruguey), the CHAIRMAN
explained that the article referred to mothers and children in geperal

and not to motherhood and childhood in particular,

The second paragraph of article 26 was adopted unanimously.

Mr. CASSIN (Frence) stated that he had abstained from voting
on paragraph 1 because it contained no reference to social securlty.
Mr. Cassin declared that world public opinion would fail to understand
why such an omission had been allowed to ocour, apnd reserved the right
to raise the whole question again when the "umbrella" clause came under

discuseion.
Mr. HOOD (/ustrelia) shared Mr, Cassin's attitude.

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the whole of the joint article

25/26, as amended.

The_article was asdopted by 8 votes to ncpe with 6 abstentions,

e meet rose at 1 .





